NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting: APPEALS PANEL
Date and Time: THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2017, AT 10.15 AM*
Place: THE FOREST SUITE, RINGWOOD GATEWAY BUILDING,

THE FURLONG, RINGWOOD

Telephone enquiries to: Lyndhurst (023) 8028 5000
023 8028 5588 - ask for Jan Debnam
E-mail: jan.debnam@nfdc.gov.uk

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

*Members of the public may speak in accordance with the Council's public

participation scheme:

(@) immediately before the meeting starts, on items within the Panel’s terms of
reference which are not on the public agenda; and/or

(b) onindividual items on the public agenda, in accordance with the defined
procedure that is attached. Anyone wishing to speak should contact the name
and number shown above.

PLEASE NOTE: The Hearing will be preceded by a visit to the site. Please meet at the
place indicated on the attached plan at 09.30 a.m.

Bob Jackson
Chief Executive

Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA
www.newforest.gov.uk

This Agenda is also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital format

AGENDA

Apologies

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

To elect a Chairman for the meeting.



MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 22 August 2017 as a correct record.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an
agenda item. The nature of the interest must also be specified.

Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services
prior to the meeting.

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 31/17 - LAND OF SNAILS LANE,
BLASHFORD (Pages 5 - 58)

To consider objections to the making of Tree Preservation Order 31/17 relating to
land of Snails Lane, Blashford.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT

To: Councillors Councillors
A R Alvey D B Tipp
Mrs S M Bennison D N Tungate
Ms L C Ford



NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

DETERMINING TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS WHERE OBJECTIONS TO THE

ORDER HAVE BEEN MADE

Procedure at the Appeals Panel for Tree Preservation Orders

INTRODUCTION

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Regulations oblige local authorities to take into consideration any duly made
objections before deciding whether to confirm a Tree Preservation Order. A
duly made objection must be sent to the Council in writing. Whether this
objection is made by letter or by e-mail it will be considered to be a public
document that is open to inspection on the file and may, in the event of an
Appeal, be published in full.

At New Forest District Council, objections are considered by a Panel drawn
from the Appeals Committee.

Meetings of the Appeals Panel are formal meetings of the Council. The Panel
is supported by a legal advisor and a Committee Administrator. The Panel will
consider all the evidence that has been submitted in respect of the Order. All of
the evidence and representations received are published and in the public
domain.

The Appeals Panel will hear the cases put forward objecting to the making of
the Order and also in support of confirming the Order. The Members of the
Panel will balance the evidence before them, in the light of the statutory
constraints and guidance that apply.

The process is designed to be as open as possible and to make it as easy as
possible for objectors and supporters of the Order to represent their point of
view. They may therefore choose to have someone with them for support; or
have their case presented by a friend, relative or professional advisor; and they
may call such professional advisors as they feel necessary.

GUIDELINES FOR MEMBER ATTENDANCE

2.1

If a member of the Panel represents the area in which the contested Tree
Preservation Order has been made as the local Ward Councillor, in accordance
with the District Council’s Code of Conduct, that Panel member must determine
for themselves whether or not they have an interest within the terms of that
Code and consequently whether they should take part in the decision making
process.

SITE VISITS

3.1

Members meet on site before the meeting to view the tree(s) covered by the
Order. The objector(s), arboriculturist, Local Ward Councillor(s) and a
representative of the Parish or Town Council are also invited to the site visit.
No discussion on the merits of the Order may take place at the site visit. The
purpose of the visit is for Members to familiarise themselves with the site and
the tree(s) and for the arboriculturist and the objector(s) to point out any
features of the tree(s).



4.

OBJECTION MEETING

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

The Chairman will explain that this is a procedure adopted by the Council for
determining objections to Tree Preservation Orders.

The procedure for the meeting will be as follows:-

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The objector(s) will explain the reasons for objection. They may expand
on their written objection and may call any expert witnesses. They may
also choose to have their case presented on their behalf by a friend or a
professional advisor. They may also have a friend or other supporter
with them for the hearing.

The Council’s arboriculturist may ask questions of the objector(s) or
their representatives.

Members of the Panel may ask questions of the objector(s).

Supporters of the objector(s) may be heard, following the same
procedure as in 1, 2 and 3.

The Council’s arboriculturist will put the case for preservation.

The objector(s) may ask questions of the arboriculturist.

Members of the Panel may ask questions of the arboriculturist.

The supporter(s) of the Order may be heard. They may ask questions
of the objector(s) and the arboriculturist. The supporters of the order
may also choose to have their case presented on their behalf by a friend
or a professional advisor. They may also have a friend or other
supporter with them for the hearing.

The local member may be heard.

The Town or Parish Council may be heard.

Members of the Panel may ask questions of the supporter(s).

The arboriculturist may sum up.

The objector(s) may sum up.

At the conclusion of the objection meeting the Chairman will declare the hearing

closed.

The Panel will then discuss the matter on the basis of the evidence that has
been presented to it. No additional information will be sought once the hearing
has been closed. The press and public may remain while the decision is made.



4.5 The decision of the Panel will be conveyed in writing to the objector(s) and all

other persons originally served with a copy of the Order as soon as possible
following the meeting.

PLEASE NOTE: ALL REPRESENTATIONS THAT ARE TO BE TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT
IN HEARING AN APPEAL WILL BE PUBLISHED IN FULL IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL'S NORMAL PROCEDURES FOR
PUBLISHING DOCUMENTS FOR MEETINGS.

(Auth-ad/Cttee/JMD/Appeals Panel/TPO Procedure Revised 1107.doc)
(11/07)



This page is intentionally left blank



T abed

~ m 1/ | N

1 ry

K ‘ U
{ Goblins W) @’
Green O ) o
; 0 ¥
\ \ ]
|
L Biashrara | 2 e L New Forest
Y Farm ==& nalis Laxe DISTRICT COUNCIL
/ 0 Tel: 023 8028 5000
! www.newforest.gov.uk
1
Ford .
Cottage TPO/0031/17
FB
ungalow Blue Hayes
Woolmer Lane
22m : Blashford
X Ringwood
_/{; Sand and Gravel \ BH24 3PQ
Works
Woolmer h Scale 1:5000
Far\m TPO/0031/17 o
Blashford o
A\
) o Picnic
3 (] TEEARAA S Area
Q
ot
- N
) _»y EL
:}‘ LL 'l‘u_
| !
r - \\_\
op !
0| )
{
|
|
— - _1
lf’
|
|
o
[© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100026220

Xauuy epusby



This page is intentionally left blank



¢ abed

TPO/0031/17

8EEY

ﬂ Please Meet Here

= HEADLANDS BUSINESS-PARK™

Dj B _ © Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100026220
i | | / !l

7l D@ :Dl @ﬁ‘\\/&) E /

New Forest

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Tel: 023 8028 5000
www.newforest.gov.uk

TPO/0031/17

Blue Hayes
Woolmer Lane
Blashford
Ringwood
BH24 3PQ

Scale 1:3000



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 4

APPEALS PANEL - 5 OCTOBER 2017

OBJECTION TO THE MAKING OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER
31/17, LAND SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD

1.  INTRODUCTION

1.1 This meeting of an Appeals Panel has been convened to hear an objection to the
making of a Tree Preservation Order.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Tree Preservation Orders are made under Section 198 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (the Act). The Act is supported by guidance issued by the
Department for Communities and Local Government on 6 March 2014 entitled
“Tree Preservation Orders and trees in conservation areas” (“the DCLG
Guidance”).

22 Tree matters throughout the New Forest District are dealt with by the New Forest
National Park Authority, with the Park Authority acting on this Council’s behalf
outside the Park area.

2.3 Where a Tree Preservation Order is made by a Park Authority officer, it has
immediate provisional effect to protect the tree. This provisional effect will last for
six months, or until the Order is confirmed by the planning authority, whichever is
earlier.

2.4 The Order contains a schedule (which includes a map) specifying which tree or
trees are protected by the Order.

2.5 Once the Order has been made, it is served, together with a Notice, on all persons
with an interest in the land affected by the Order. It will also be made available for
public inspection. Other parties told about the Order include the Town or Parish
Council and District Council ward members. The Authority may also choose to
publicise the Order more widely. The Notice will state the reasons that the Order
has been made, and will contain information about how objections or
representations may be made in relation to the Order.

2.6 The procedure allows for written objections and representations to be made to the
Authority.

2.7 Where an objection is made to the Order, in the first instance, the Tree Officers will
contact the objector to see if their concerns can be resolved. If they cannot, then,
in respect of trees outside the National Park area, the objection is referred to a
meeting of this Council’s Appeals Panel for determination.

2.8 The Appeals Panel must consider any duly made objections and representations,

and must decide whether to confirm the Tree Preservation Order, with or without
modifications.

Page 5



CRITERIA FOR MAKING A TREE PRESERVATION ORDER

3.1

A local planning authority may make an Order if it appears to them to be:

“expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of
trees or woodlands in their area”.

TYPES OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The Tree Preservation Order may protect one or more individual trees, groups of
trees or woodlands or, more rarely, refer to an area of land.

An individually specified tree must meet the criteria for protection in its own right.

A group of trees must have amenity value as a group, without each individual tree
necessarily being of outstanding value. The overall impact and quality of the group
should merit protection.

A woodland order would protect woodland as a whole. While each tree is
protected, not every tree has to have high amenity value in its own right. It is the
general character of the woodland that is important. A woodland order would
protect trees and saplings which are planted or grow naturally after the order is
made.

An area designation can be used to protect trees dispersed over a specified area.
It may protect all trees in that area, or only trees of a particular species. An area
order may well be introduced as a holding measure, until a proper survey can be
done. It is normally considered good practice to review area orders and replace
them with one or more orders that specify individual or groups of trees.

THE ROLE OF THE PANEL

5.1

5.2

While objectors may object on any grounds, the decision about confirmation of the
Order should be confined to the test set out in 3.1 above.

Amenity value

This term is not defined in the Act, but the DCLG Guidance advises:

¢ Orders should be used to protect selected trees and woodlands if their removal
would have a significant negative impact on the local environment and its

enjoyment by the public.

e There should be a reasonable degree of public benefit in the present or future.

Page 6



5.3

e When assessing amenity value, the authority might take the following into
consideration: -

i. Visibility: The extent to which the trees or woodlands can be
seen by the public will inform the authority’s assessment of
whether the impact on the local environment is significant. The
trees, or at least part of them, should normally be visible from a
public place, such as a road or footpath, or accessible by the
public.

ii. Individual, collective and wider impact: Public visibility alone
will not be sufficient to warrant an Order. The authority should also
assess the particular importance of an individual tree, or groups of
trees or woodlands by reference to its or their characteristics
including: -

Size and form;

Future potential as an amenity;

Rarity, cultural or historic value;

Contribution to, and relationship with, the landscape; and

Contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation

area.

iii. Other factors: Where relevant to an assessment of the amenity
value of trees or woodlands, authorities may consider taking into
account other factors, such as importance to nature conservation
or response to climate change. These factors alone would not
warrant making an order.

U N

Expediency
Again, this is not defined in the Act, but the DCLG Guidance is as follows:

Although some trees or woodlands may merit protection on amenity grounds it may
not be expedient to make them the subject of an Order. For example it is unlikely
to be necessary to make an Order in respect of trees which are under good
arboricultural or silvicultural management.

It may be expedient to make an Order if the authority believes there is a risk of
trees being felled, pruned or damaged in ways which would have a significant
impact on the amenity of the area. But it is not necessary for there to be
immediate risk for there to be a need to protect the trees. In some cases the
authority may believe that certain trees are at risk as a result of development
pressures and may consider, where this is in the interests of amenity, that it is
expedient to make an Order. Authorities can also consider other sources of risks
to trees with significant amenity value. For example, changes in property
ownership and intentions to fell trees are not always known in advance, so it may
sometimes be appropriate to proactively make Orders as a precaution.

6. THE EFFECT OF THE ORDER

6.1

Once the Order has been made, it is an offence to cut down, top, lop, uproot,
wilfully damage or wilfully destroy the protected tree or trees without first gaining
consent from the Council through a tree works application, unless such works are
covered by an exemption within the Act.

Page 7



6.2

7.1

7.2

There is no fee for a tree works application. If consent is refused for tree works,
the applicant has the right of appeal to the Secretary of State.

CONSIDERATION

Members will have visited the site immediately prior to the formal hearing, to allow
them to acquaint themselves with the characteristics of the tree or trees within the
context of the surrounding landscape. Members should reach a decision, based
on their own observations, any evidence presented, and any objections and
representations made, whether it appears to them to be expedient in the interests
of amenity to confirm the Order.

The written evidence that is attached to this report is as follows:

Appendix 1 The Tree Preservation Order.

Appendix 2 The report of the Council’s Tree Officer, setting out all the issues
(s)he considers should be taken into account, and making the

case for confirming the Order.

Appendix 3 The written representations from the objectors to the making of
the Order

Appendix 4 Written representations from any supporters of the Order.
Members will hear oral evidence at the hearing, in support of these written

representations. The procedure to be followed at the hearing is attached to the
agenda.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

There are some modest administrative costs associated with the actual process of
serving and confirming the Order. There are more significant costs associated with
the need to respond to any Tree Work Applications to lop, top or fell the trees as
the officers will normally visit the site and give advice on the potential work.

The Council does not become liable for any of the costs of maintaining the tree or
trees. That remains the responsibility of the trees’ owner.

The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012
provide that a person will be entitled to receive compensation from the Local
Planning Authority for loss or damage caused or incurred in consequence of: -

(@) The refusal of any consent required under the Regulations;

(b) The grant of any such consent subject to conditions;

(c) The refusal of any consent, agreement or approval required under such a
condition.

A claim to compensation cannot be made where: -

Page 8



10.

11.

8.5

(@) More than 12 months have elapsed since the Local Planning Authority’s
decision (or, if the decision has been appealed to the Secretary of State,
from the date of determination of the appeal);

(b) The amount of the claim would be less than £500.

Compensation is NOT payable: -

(@) For loss of development value or other diminution in the value of the land.
‘Development value’ means an increase in value attributable to the
prospect of developing land, including the clearing of land;

(b) Forloss or damage which, having regard to the application made, and the
documents and particulars accompanying the application, was not
reasonably foreseeable when consent was refused, or was granted subject
to conditions;

(c) Forloss or damage which was (i) reasonably foreseeable by the person
seeking compensation, and (ii) attributable to that person’s failure to take
reasonable steps to avert the loss or damage, or to mitigate its extent;

(d) For costs incurred in appealing to the Secretary of State against the refusal
of any consent required under the Regulations, or the grant of such consent
subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The trees must have significant value within their landscape to justify the

confirmation of the Order.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

10.1

There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

11.1

The making or confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order could interfere with the
right of the property owner (under the First Protocol of the European Convention on
Human Rights) peacefully to enjoy his possessions. Such interference is capable
of justification if it is in the public interest (the amenity value of the tree).

In so far as the trees are on or serve private residential property, the making or
confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order could interfere with the right of a person
(under Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights) to respect for his
private and family life and his home. Such interference is capable of justification if
it is in accordance with the law and necessary in a democratic society for the
protection of the rights and freedoms of others.

Page 9



12. RECOMMENDED:

12.1  That the Panel consider all the evidence before them and consider whether or not
to confirm TPO 31/17 relating to land of Snails Lane, Blashford with, or without,

amendment.
For Further Information Please Contact: Background Papers:
Jan Debnam Attached Documents:
Committee Administrator TPO 31/17
Tel: (023) 8028 5588 Published documents

E-mail: jan.debnam@nfdc.qov.uk

Grainne O’Rourke

Executive Head Governance and Regulation.
Tel: (023) 8028 5588

E-mail: grainne.orourke@nfdc.gov.uk

Page 10



APPENDIX 1

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER TPO/0031/17

LAND AT SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD BH24 2PG

The New Forest National Park Authority, in exercise of the powers conferred on them by
section 198 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 make the following Order—

Anyone wishing to undertake works to trees protected by TPO should apply in writing fo the
Authority clearly identifying the tree(s) and the work intended. A decision will usually be
issued within six weeks. Application forms are obtainable from the Authority's website.

Citation
1. This Order may be cited as the TPO/0031/17 - LAND AT SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD
BH24 2PG.

Interpretation )
2. (1) In this Order “the authority” means the New Forest National Park Authority.

(2) In this Order any reference to a humbered section is a reference to the section so
numbered in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a
numbered regulation is a reference to the regulation so numbered in the Town and
Country Planining (Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012.

Effect
3. (1) Subject to article 4, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which itis
made.

(2) Without prejudice fo subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make tree
preservation orders) or subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders:
Forestry Commissioners) and, subject to the exceptions in fegulation 14, no petson
shall -

(a)  Cutdown, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy; or

(b) cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful damage or wilful
destruction of,

any tree spaciﬁeci in the Schedule to this Order except with the written consent of the
authority in accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secre%ary of State in
accordance with regulation 23, and, where such consent is given subject to
conditions, in accordance with those conditions.

Appilication to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4, In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter "C",
beinga tree to be planted pursuar;t to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of
section 197 (planning permission to include appropriate provision for preservation
and planting of trees), this. Order takes effect as from the time when the tree is
planted.

., P N .
Dated this LA ; day of .. LLH o B
* w imrewitrabirieleatiy AT s b s SR r s AN e u e KRR Ny Gxswsnnexew T v AT b s PR RNy FErasF R AR b e i n s g s

Signed on behalf of the New Forest National Park Authority

Authorised by the AuthaBty-6 sign in that behalf

Page 13



Reference
on map

Nona

Reference
on map

A1

Reference
on map

None

Reference
on map

None

SCHEDULE

SPECIFICATION OF TREES
TPO/0031/17

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the Plan attached to this order)

Description Situation

, Trees specified by reference to an area
(within a dotted black line on the Plan attached to this order)

Description Situation

All trees of Area of land between Snails Lane and Woolmer
whatever species Lane, as shown on plan.

Groups of trees
(within a broken black line on the Plan attached to this order)
Description Situation (including number of trees in the group)

Woodlands

(within a continuous black line on the Plan attached to this order)

Description Situation

Page 14



Headiands .
Business Park

Snails Lake

'z

Y =T8N

T{"}%e Brjnga\é\iﬁgfaf?* e
ne‘x*‘»«*’ :

Kirigfisher Pa ]
o N - o /' \V )

1

= © Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 1000114703 |

SRR

P

2

[l AN
Jobr
px)
£

A\

]

fa

i

NEW FOREST
NATIONAL PARK

New Forest Natlonal Park Authority TPOI0031/17
Lymington Town Hall

Avehue Road

Lymington

S041 926

Tel: 01590 646600

Fax: 01690 646666

Date: 31/05/2017
SCALE: 1:2750
Page 15

>Z

—




HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 2000

| have been asked to exercise the power delegated to me by the Authority to make
the following Tree Preservation Order:

TPO/0031/17 LAND AT SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD BH24 2PG

Having considered the Tree Officer's reasons for making the TPO, | make the above
TPO.

In coming to this decision, | have carefully considered Article 8 and Article 1 of the
First Protocol of the Human Rights Act 1998,

Whilst | recognise that the decision to make the TPO may interfere with the 2
aforementioned rights, | believe it is necessary to do so in the public interest (so that
others can enjoy the considerable amenity value and benefits afforded by the tree(s)
and likewise necessary for the protection of the rghts and freedoms of others (i.e.
the inhabitants of the area) to enjoy the tree(s) in their present settings. | also
consider such action to be proportionate to the overall aim

Signed:

An Authorised Signatory

Date: &;/ﬁé/g 6i7

Page 16



APPENDIX 2

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

APPEALS PANEL - 5 OCTOBER 2017

OBJECTION TO THE MAKING OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER
31/17, LAND SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD

REPORT OF THE NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY TREE OFFICER

1. REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Unresolved Objections

2, PARISH COUNCIL COMMENTS
None received

3. REPRESENTATIONS

3.1 Three representations received objecting to the confirmation of the Tree
Preservation Order:

Indiscriminate nature of the use of ‘Area’; bureaucratic which will take
up officer time and Council/Authority money; much of land no
trees/unsuitable trees; trees and hedges obstructing the road or utility
services; dangerous trees; timescale for development.

4, RELEVANT HISTORY

4.1 Site previously used as a quarry for sand and gravel extraction (earliest
record referenced in the 1970’s)

4.2 Site restored and used for grazing animals as seen today.

4.3 On request by New Forest District Council following Local Plan Review
this site was assessed for suitable protection of amenity trees. Please
see - Planning Development Control Committee with the Environment
Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Wednesday, 6th September, 2017 11.00 am

5. ASSESSMENT

5.1 The site lies within the Blashford area to the north of Ringwood town.
The area comprises of a sectioned field used for animal grazing and is
flanked by Snails Lane and Woolmer Lane to the north and south of the
site.

5.2 A Tree Preservation Order (TPO) will be made by the Authority to
protect specific trees, groups of trees or woodlands in the interests of
public amenity. A TPO prohibits the cutting down, topping, lopping,
uprooting, wilful damage and wilful destruction of trees. This is then not
to say that a tree cannot have suitable or necessary works undertaken
to it; only that those works will first require the written consent of the
Authority following an application process (which is free for the applicant
and is normally determined within 6 weeks). If an application is refused,
there is a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate.

Page 19



5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

The basis upon which a TPO will be made varies but the trees within the
TPO area should provide benefit, which is to say public amenity value,
within the local environment and its wider enjoyment by the public.
Many trees meet these criteria but in selecting trees for inclusion in a
new TPO, it will also need to be expedient for the Authority to do so. It
would therefore be expedient to make a TPO on such trees if the
Authority considered there to be a risk of the trees being felled, pruned
or damaged. It is not necessary for there to be an immediate risk and
therefore changes of ownership or enquiries about development will be
expedient grounds upon which to make a TPO. Whilst the making of a
TPO could interfere with the rights of a property owner, such
interference is justifiable where the tree is of sufficient public amenity
value and thus the making of the TPO would be in accordance with
planning legislation and justifiable as being in the public interest.

The TPO was made at the site in response to notification from NFDC
that the site is being considered for allocation during the Local Plan
Review. The site being allocated for potential development meant that
the creating of the TPO was expedient. Local Plan preparation has and
is being informed by an ongoing Sustainability Appraisal, and an
updated Sustainability Appraisal report will be published alongside the
Local Plan for the pre-submission public consultation in early 2018. The
TPO’s designations will help the council ensure that there are no
adverse impacts on trees and protected hedgerows, and will inform the
master planning process for each strategic site

The objections received are noted but do not substantiate a reason to
not confirm the TPO. An ‘Area’ to protect all trees throughout the site
was deemed suitable due to the timescale provided and the large area
of the site. The use of the ‘area’ is considered to be temporary and will
be amended upon a topographical survey being submitted during the
development process. In regards to clearing highways; this may be
reasonably undertaken as exempt works and permission has been
provisionally granted to one objector to allow the continuation of pruning
to a boundary line group (please see enclosed communications). With
no TPO at the site the Authority would have no way to prevent the
potential for tree felling and therefore the loss of public amenity value.
With this in mind, it is neither bureaucratic nor premature and it is clearly
expedient to confirm the TPO against the backdrop of the
development/aspirations for the site.

Snails Lane and Woolmer lane and located off of Salisbury Road,
Blashford. The local area is characterised by a high level of tree cover
which includes the area within TPO/0031/17.

The trees are of a mixed age ranging from young to mature.

Species include, but not exclusive to: Oak, Poplar, Ash and Hawthorn.
The site comprises of linear groups that divide sections within the site
and provide screening from the road. Given that the trees are adjacent
to Snails Lane and Woolmer Lane they are highly prominent and
contribute positively to the area which gives little indication to the
previous use of the site.

It is therefore the case that the area of trees in question provide public
amenity value and that it would be expedient to confirm the TPO. The
comments raised in objection are noted, but for the above reasons are
not considered to outweigh the requirement to confirm the Tree
Preservation Order to protect these trees into the future.

Page 20



6.

RECOMMENDATION

To confirm the Tree Preservation Order as unmodified

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Billabong
Snails Lane
BH24 3PG

Paul Hocking

Enforcement and Trees Manager
New Forest National Park Authority
Lymington Town Hall

Avenue Road

Lymington

5041 9ZG

22™ July 2017

Dear Mr Hocking
Re TPO/0031/17

Thank you for your letter dated 5™ July inviting me to respond to the TPO placed on the fields south of Snails
Lane. As you know these fields are subdivided and the section opposite my house formerly known as lot 3 is
owned by Farthing Orchards Ltd of which | am a director.

| would be grateful if you could take into consideration the following points:

1 The large mature Poplar trees make an excellent screen for the houses on Snails Lane and | have
no intention of cutting them down. However they are very tall and you will notice that the
previous owners topped them a number of years ago. | understand this topping leaves Poplar
trees with a weak spot and branches may severe at this point causing a danger to individuals and
their property.

2 The trees are getting so tall that they are in danger of being large enough to fall onto buildings in
particular our neighbours house “The Bungalow”. | believe they would have difficulties insuring
this house if the trees are much taller. It is therefore essential that maintenance on these trees is
allowed without the prolonged process of applying for planning permission.

3 In the centre of the field there is a copse of poorly maintained trees. On either end of this copse
the Willow trees have partly fallen and trunks lie horizontal to the ground. It would seem outside
of the purpose of the TPO to expect maintenance of these trees to require special permission.

4 In addition there is poorly preserved hedging which could be regarded as trees at the south
extremity of the land. Some of these were cut back last year to prevent damage to the electricity
lines.

5 | appreciate that the land as a whole is subject to a potential change of use to allow

development. | am sure all of us who live in the area would wish the mature trees to be an
important part of that if it were deemed safe.

Thank you for your consideration in regards to this unnecessary order which simply adds to the efforts
required when trying to keep the area preserved.

Yours sincerel

Alan Farthing Director Farthing Orchards Ltd

Page 25



NEW FOREST
NATIONAL PARK

Alan Farthing

Billabong

Snails Lane

Blashford 09 August 2017
BH24 3PG

Dear Mr Farthing

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER No: TPO/0031/17
SITE: LAND AT SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD BH24 2PG

Thank you for your recent letter concerning the above Tree Preservation Order
(TPO).

| note from your letter that you have several concerns relating to trees within the site
at Snails Lane.

| believe that in order to address your concerns it may be suitable to arrange a site
visit so that we may discuss each point you raise.

| would appreciate it if you could contact me, using the details below, so that we may
find a suitable time and date to meet.

Yours sincerely
Lucy Saunders

Assistant Tree Officer
Tel: 01590 646670
Email: lucy.saunders@newforestnpa.gov.uk

New Forest National Park Authority
LYMINGTON TOWN HALL, AVENUE ROAD, LYMINGTON S0419ZG
Telephone 01590 646600 Fax 01590 646666

www.newforestnpa.gov.uk
CHAIRMAN OLIVER CROSTHWp'ag@ F EXECUTIVE ALISON BARNES


mailto:lucy.saunders@newforestnpa.gov.uk
http://www.newforestnpa.gov.uk

Ve e SN

f:?:"z% s‘%w% Neo Y ?’é: fa;s:: 2 ji*“‘%

NThe oren (oo oz dracon

P 2N AW LN ﬁ‘f{" .

o {é?i» X e ey M\ w&&%ﬁ

S Se e, N\ v e < é\% ::;:}w A ; «% %f‘*%‘v’%
N SOy g = < % e gs o e (D /%k%iaﬁéa

I ; ,,,, 7 i : V%& ?

M%ﬁ%\% i’il;www Y MNae U5 aw{‘f‘

o e s S A NS R 5 1 N

G, B, *{ﬁ%

i, G e, P, L0 f’”{;mmﬁf‘% 5

Page 27



T oS g~ oL o - e
A e\

By

%,

TR AN N T N =y \ces . %\y{ﬁ;’&
mmi‘{i PO \C el mw{f\
vt WL NN A
e I %mz;‘k \Og %"i’%% filw %zz\k—%a
C %’% *”42/\%«% ‘x‘z%% Cn I g‘%

BN D SN

S ety e ) \\, i Bt w"?...,,,,& \a il

mﬁé}“;’” }*“—% x‘% S € &,,{;ﬂi?&@ﬁ ¢ W? O

R sl %»Mﬂ% ,f on AN T \f%a
' & mg‘f“%*‘% Nz W%%“"W:g
- g

Z) A, L0 aN e %; eers
Yo exlsew A\ odh et D, B
PN S Ve Ww@}‘m iﬁ/wﬁag;\&mmfmﬂw
NP SIS U A RS S . -

kel mosoe \’\@“”‘m A N\ ai‘}%gg—

C O ?%«::»‘x% ‘%\ﬁﬁw ﬁw_wa};fz &‘vzzz%ﬁ,ﬂ%%ﬂg}a %e@ﬁ

‘% 3
Bl LN - %zéx\wk\ A T
fﬁ%ﬂ,m;‘}\, &, % 0 f”% éﬂ%{;jwuww \{: ggz"‘

& Wa%%'ﬁi O SN A A\ o a»s.:f&

Page 28



5 i R ? , %g':;”%? N S iﬁ%’mi««

%:} i:?% /M x‘&m"“{a% JW% &% %\{m% %"W;

\=e e aﬁf‘% %“i’z» sz%u%w~m

SO B T 2%%%;}»2» C.o 5% awﬁag‘i;a ~

Ry :
Wé}@ {”if}f}{“’ s »«wa"% wmfﬁ
E . %%ﬁ%\‘\ méﬁaw %&fﬂ% A e

A

W %%i;; K“ "’”}3

“'».

Page 29



G % ﬁ}%w‘%\:i "é‘—”‘i ‘é\‘*@ »ﬁ:z:% ’

"’%ﬁww/::} i R < e ‘\‘f% é\:‘%ﬁ,}«} F o S B S

A, B ,&éz 2o 4\%._ }u{;f&;\u% s 02

T BN ‘“”“‘W W aﬁ««f%%ifl}\

aoNedst ;.ﬁg s & %g%%#@gka;
vers WOTE o Dends %zﬁ,gf’%”@&
m;%{» *f")ﬁfm—;}mu% (-3 W& N iy@ ﬁ&%@:&%
T e i‘:i"»» G5 T wReh S
R 5B RS ‘;\« E/W”%E

% Y 5,,;&"{’9 & {:}?\‘

T g;;:}% i, g2 w;,.:&,‘ %’%"éi T \i,%’"%,‘_ W

N

B

”)f/lf %é&%f*:}” """}25 % ‘ ,,f%e:;\(w maﬁé;
gaéwffw’” NS i:t&mc %%g VI f’ s %«g

F

o &V%{E{j 0" .

Page 30



2udies A Carpreieer

el

Page 31




Page 32



NEW FOREST
NATIONAL PARK

Mr Richard Carpenter

Blue Hayes
Woolmer Lane
Blashford
BH24 3PQ

21/06/2017
Dear Mr Carpenter

| am writing in response to the comments you made within your objection
letter dated 15/06/2017 regarding TPO/0031/17 Land at Snails Lane.

| will address each point you raised in your letter in order.

Firstly you mention that the area TPO is indiscriminate and takes no account
of differentiating between tree species and age range. The New Forest
National Park ‘Authority was given notice by New Forest District Council that
the land at Snails Lane had been allocated as a potential development site.
As the trees within the site had no protection and the threat to the long term
retention of the trees is considered foreseeable, premature removal or
extensive pruning of the trees would result in the loss of an amenity to the
local environment. The Authotity, therefore, reacted -accordingly. An Area
order was deemed fo be the most suitable option for tree protection given the
limited timescale and large size of the area of land and, as such, pmtesfs ‘all
trees of whatever spectes’ If the Hawthorn, which you mention in your letter,
requires regular maintenance than there are two cptgans going forward in
order to alleviate the burden of administration. The first is to establish if the
Hawthorn is considered hedgerow or trees. If the group have regularly been
maintained as a hedgerow then permiss:on to undertake work will not be
required. The second is that if the Hawthorn is considered to be a group of
trees 'then during an application process we will be able to set up a cyclical
management plan. This will mean that you- obtain permission just once for the
management of the frees which will stand for a number of vears.

Secondly you state that the TPO outline appears to extend all the way over
Snails Lane and Woolmer Lane. The boundary to the TPO follows that of the
allocated area that was given to the Authority by NFDC which means that, as
you rightly say, some trees that overhang the road will be protected. Works to

clear highways may be undertaken by Hampshire County Council. If there are

Mew Forest National Park Autﬁcfity

Lymiagton Town. Hall, Avenue Road, Lym?ngf&m Hampahire 5041 826G
Talephone 01590 646660 Fax 01590 846666  Email hilary short@newlorésihpa goviuk
www.newforestnpé. govik

CHARMAN: OLIVER CRQ%STHWA!’FE EYRE" CHIEE EXECUTIVE-ALISON BARNES

Page 33




any issues with visibility or encroachment you may wish to contact Hampshire
Highways by telephone: 03005551388 or email: highways-
transport.west@hants.gov.uk. If the owner of the trees wishes to apply for
works to clear highways themselves then they would bée required to complete
an application form (free of charge) in order to gain written permission. The
Authority considers works to clear highways reasonable and would therefore
likely grant consent. Onice a decision notice has been issued works may be
undertaken. If the trees overhanging the highway are posing an imminent
threat then an ‘emergency works notice can be issued outside of the usual
application process.

Finally, in response to the points you raise in part 3 of your letter, please be
assured that it is the intention of the Authority to revise the TPO scheme in
order to protect trees either as Individuals or Groups at a later date. This often
undertaken when an Area order is created under circumstances in which
TPO/0031/17 was made.

In summary the aims of the Authority in making this TPO order is to enisure
that any potential future development takes place in-an appropriate way and
to safeguard trees and natural features which are important to the visual
amenities of the area,

Please feel free to gi ive me a call on the telephone number or- email address
below if you require any further information on the matter or to let me know
that you are happy for the TPO fo be confirmed.

I hope this is helpful.

Kind regards

Lucy Saunders

Assistant Tree Officer

Direct Line: 01590 646670
Email: lucy.saunders@newforestnpa.gov.uk

Page 34



NEW FOREST
NATIONAL PARK

R S Carpenter

Bluehayes

Woolmer Lane o
Blashford 18 July 2017
BH24 3PQ

Dear R S Carpenter

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER No: TP0/0031/17
SITE: LAND AT SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD BH24 2PG

The authority has not heard back from you since a responce was sent in reply to
your letter concerning the above Tree Preservation Order (TPO).

| therefore trust that our responce suitably explains our position and how we have
sought to address your concerns. The TPO will therefore be confirmed however if
you consider your objection has not been suitably addressed please advise me in
writing within 14 days of the date of this letter.

Yours sincerely

Lucy Saunders

Assistant Tree Officer

Tel: 01590646670

Email: trees@newforestnpa,gov.uk

NMew Forest-National Park Authority
LYMIMNGTON TOWN HALL AVENUE ROAD; LYMINGTON 5041 926
Telephone 01590, 64661?3{1 Fax 01590 646666

Wwwngtarasig paihv.uk
sHamMA& OLIVER CROSTHWAITEBYRES OMleF EXECUTIVE ALISON BARNES




Page 36




Froms ichard Carpenter

Tor JTress

Subject: TRQ/O031/17 - Land at Snails Lane
Dater 28 Jiy 2017 111715

DearLucy,

In response to your letter of 18th July, | still object to the TPO being confirmed due to a
number of reasans that NFDC have still not adequately addressed.

The extent of the boundary line covers both Snails Lane and Woolmer Lane (which
actually does not accurately reflect the boundary of site R in the draft local plan), however
my concern is still about Highway Safety. You suggested in your response to my letter that
Hampshire Council would maintain'the lanes, hawever Snails-and Woolmer Lane are
private lanes and are maintained by residents and Jand owners.

This means any TPO preventing trees being cut back has potential to cause increased risk
to car users, pedestrians and cyclists along the lane due to reduced visibility. | have three
young children who regularly walk / ride to our field along the lane and if cutting back the
trees isn't easy (and notification to the councl in writing is.a real barrier for some without
emall) then people just will stop doing it. This site may never be developed and the TPO
could seriously 'img:é‘ct the safety on'the lanes in the short and longerterm. 1still thinkthe
TPO boundary should hot extend across either lane a5t has no advantage to protecting
the area i question.

You mentioned in our telephone conversation that trees on Highways are exemptito TPOs

and that we would be able to maintain the visibility on the lanes, by cutting back branches
ete, without notification or permission of NFNP. If so, please confirm this is the case.

Also as discussed, | have part way through a job to fence my field and have been tritiming
béck the Hawthorn trees by about 2ft to regain parts of the field. | would like to be able to
continue trimming the Hawthorn trees back without requesting permission, so | can finish
thefencing. You suggested this would be allowed asan exemption under this TPO. If so,
please confirm this is the case,

If the two issues above, Highway Safety and my origoing work to the field edge are
addressed adequately | will withdraw my objection tothe TPO,

Many Thanks.
Regards,

Richard Carpenter

Page 37



Page 38



NEW FOREST
NATIONAL PARK

R S Carpenter

Bluehayes

Woolmer Lane ‘v
Blashford ’ 31 July 2017
BH24 3PQ

Dear R S Carpenter

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER No: TPQ/0031/17
SITE: LAND AT SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD BH24 2PG

Thank you for your recent telephone call and email conceming the above Tree
Preservation Order (TPO).

To ¢larify the points you raised 1 c:ar; confirm that tree works to clear highways would
be considered exempt works.

[ am also happy to ‘agt’;ee to the following works to trees on your land as below:
1 x Group of Hawthom trees growing within A1 of TPQ/0031/17
~ Reduce and reshape selected branches by up to 1 m.

The permission to carry out these works will remain for 2 years from the date at the
top of this letter.

| hope that this adequatly addresses your concems. Please contact me to confirm
that you are happy to withdraw your ojection or if you require any further information.

Yours sincerely

Lucy Saunders

Assistant Tree Officer

Tel: 01590 646670

Email: trees@newforestnpa.gov.uk

New Forast National Park Authaniy .
E,WENG"E‘ON TOWN HALL, AVENUE ROAD, L?M!NE‘FON S{M‘é 872G
Telephone 01590 846600 ?‘ax GISQG {:‘46666

www.newfofestipd, GOk
CHAIRMAN CLIVER CROSTHWAITEEYRE  CHIEE E&xzw’?wz ALISON BARNES

Page 39



Page 40



From:lLucy Saunders

Sent:9 Aug 2017 12716:34 +0100
To: . .
Subject:Re: TPO/0031/17

Dear Richard

I arn writing to you again as | have not heard from you since my previous lefter sent on 31/07/2017.

['would appreciate it if you could contact me to let me know that you are happy for the TPO to be
confirmed.

If 1 do riot hear frof you by "14/08/2017 Lshall take this mean you are happy for vour objection'to be
withdrawn. ' ‘ '

Please feel free to contact me for-any further clarification.
Kind regards
Lucy Saunders

Assistant Tree Officer

Direct Line: 901590 646570

Page 41



Page 42



Lucy Saunders

N AN,

From: Lucy Saunders

Sent: 24 August 2017 13:33
To: ‘Richard Carpenter’
Subject: RE: TPO/0031/17
Dear Richard

Yes, you should be contacted shortly with detalls of how you make your representation and the panel process.
Please let me know if this is not forthcoming.

Kind regards

Lucy Saunders

Assistant Tree Officer ’
Direct Line: 01590 646670

From: Richard Cargenter [mailtg i 1
Sent: 23 August 2017 19:16

To: Lucy Saunders

Subject: RE: TPO/0031/17

Lucy, thanks for letting me know. Would it be possible to make representation at the panel to get across my
concerns clearly?

Richard

Sent from my Windows:Photie

From: Lucy Saunders
Sent' 23[08[261? 12 03

To: Richard Caz‘{seni:er
Suh;ar:t' RE: T?0/€3031[1’?

Dear Richard

Dué {0 your ongoing concerns the New Forest National Park Authority have made the decision to také the TPO to
panel where members will consider its merits and decide whethér the TFO should be confirmed or not.

You will hear from NFDC in due course,
Kind regards
Lucy Saunders

Assistant Tree Officer
Direct Uine: (}15% 646670

Fram, Richard Carpenter [mailto
Sent: 16 August 2017 10:35
Tor Lucy Saunders; Trees
Subject: Re: TPQ/%IQSE;J.?

Dear Lucy,

Paige 43



Thank you for your letter dated 31st July which | only received on on the 14th of August 2017. It goes
someway to addressing one of my concerns although seeing as there are a variety of small trees on the
boundary of my field the way in which the TPO has been applied still causes me issues. More

critically, however it also seems to completely overlook my primary concerns regarding the boundary of
the TPO and the impact it will have on highway safety of cars, cyclists and pedestrians. | copy below the
email sent to your department on the 28th July 2017.

1 still don't understand why the authority can not survey the trees and protect those which are of
significance and importance to the area. |believe these trees would be only a handful across the 20 acre
site and all of the issues | have raised in my emalls and letters would be addressed adequately. In the
loriger term this will cause both the authority and the residents of Snails and Woolmer Lane less work
which is surely a benefit to all, including the taxpayer. Please could you provide the reason that you can't
do this?

On the basis that my initial reasons for objecting to the TPO have not-been addressed. Ny objection still
remains.

As | have said previously, | am in support of protecting the trees in the area, but it should be done through
ar accurate and targeted approach without compromising public safety.

I hope you appreciate my ongoing concerns, | would be happy to meet you on site to discuss my points.
further.

Regards,

Richard Carpenter

email sentto you on 28th July 2017:
"Dear Lucy,.

In response to your letter of 18th July, Istill object to the TPO being confirmed due to a number of reasons
that NFDC have still not adequately addressed.

The extent of the boundary line covers both Snails Lane and Woolmer Lane (which actually does not
aemrateiy reflect the boundary of site R in the draft local pian}g however my concern is'still about Highway
Safety. You suggested in your response to my letter that Hampshire Council would maintain the 1anesf
however Snails and Woolmer Lane are private lanes and are maintained by residents and land owners.

This means any TPO preventing trees being cut back has potential to cause increased risk to car users,
pedestrians and cyclists along the lane due to reduced visibility, | have three young children who regularly
walk / ride to-our field along the lane and if cutting back the tress ish't. easy (and notification to the council
i writing is a real barrier for some without email) then people just will stop doing it. This site may never
be developed and the TPO could seriously impact the safety on the lanes in the short and longer term. |
still think the TPO boundary should not extend across either laneas it has no advantage to protectingthe
area in question

You mentioned in our telephone conversation that trees on Highways are exempt to TPOs and that we

would be able to maintain the visibility on the lanes, by cutting back branches etc, without notification or
permission of NENP. If so, please confirm this s the case.

2
Page 44



Also as discussed, [ have part way through a job to fence my field and have been trimming back the
Hawthorn trees by about 2ft to regain parts of the field. | would like to be able to continue trimming the
Hawthorn trees back without requesting permission, so [ can finish the fencing. You suggested this would
be allowed as an éxemption under this TPO. If so, please confirm this is the case.

If the two issues above, Highway Safety and my ongoing work to the field edge are addressed adequately |
will withdraw my objection to the TPO.

Many Thanks,
Regards,

Richard Carpenter”

From: Lucy Saunders <lucy.saunders@newforestnpa.gov.uks
Sent: 14 August 2017 08:17

To: Richard Carpenter

Subject: RE: TPO/0031/17

Dear Richard

Many apologies that you did riot receive the letter sént on 31 July, not'sure why it failed to reach you.
| have attached itto this ema’ii please let me know your thoughts.

Kind regards -

Litcy Saunders

Assistant Tree Officer
Direct Line; 01590 646670

From; Richard Carpenter [mailto:.
Sent: 14 August 2017 08:48

“To: Lucy Sauriders

Subject: Re: TPO/0031/17

Dear Lucy,

| haven't received a response from you fegarding iy efmail dated 28th July 2017. Therefore my objection

still stands as my concerns have not been addressed. Some of which have respect public safety. If you
sent a letter on the 31st July, | didn't receive it. '

Please do not just assume that | have withdrawn my objection because | have not responded to you. |

have been on holiday and have another one coming up. This is an unfair approach to take as I don't always
have accessto email during these périods..

ook forward to your response to my email of 28th July.
Regards,

Richard.

Paae 45



From: Lucy Saunders <lucy.saunders@newforestnpa.gov.uk>
Sent: 09 Auglst 2017 11316

To: richardcarpenter.

Subject: Re: TPO/0031/17

Dear Richard

| amwriting to you aigain as | have not heard frony you since my previous lefter sent o 31/07/2017.

| would appreciate it if you could contact me to let me Know that you are happy for the TPQ to be confirmed.

if I do not hear from you by 14/08/2017 | shall take this mean you are happy for your objection to be withdrawn,
Please feel free to contact me for any further clarification.

Kind regards

Lucy Saunders

Assl S‘?H“r}t'f'%‘éé Officer
Direct Line: 01590 646670

Conriect with us on:

HI% TORLY
HATHONAL PABE L y .
New Forest National Park Authority
Lymington Town Hall
8041926
Switchboard: 01590 646600
‘Web: www.newforestnpa.gov.ik

New Forest National Park
Authority Homepage -
Telephone ...

www newforestnpa.gov.uk

Information about the New Forest National
Park in southern England, Conservation, things
to do, what to see; days out, évents, planning,
advice,-and grants,

Sign up for Enews
Emall Disclaimer ) o o
The New Forest National Park Authority's Purposes.

4
Page 46



Connactwith us on:

e

HEW ?i“%fg?
HATHORAL FARR

New Farest National Park Authority
Lymington Town Hall
5041 92G
Bwitchhoard: 01590 846600
Web: wwye.newforesinpa.gov.uk
Sign up for Enews
Email Dasc;!a:mar

o

=

Conniect withus on:

MEY
xa"rfamL ?AEK

New Forest National Park Authority
Lymington Town Hall
8041 9ZG
Switchboard: 01590 646600
‘Web: www.newlorestnpa. gov.uk

s 1p for EﬂﬁWS

Email Disclaimer 7

The New Forest National Park Authority's
Purposes

Page 47



Page 48



APPENDIX 4

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Tan MeGrat |

Sent: 25 June 2017 11:56
To: Andrew Herring
Subject: Re: Eco Survey - Land south of Snails Lane.

Andrew

Shortly before I left home I received a letter concerning a proposed TPO on the same land, and forgot to bring
the letter with me.

Please could I trouble you to forward this email to the appropriate person, stating my objection to the
indiscriminate nature of the TPO. I need to look after the trees on my land including any which overhang
Woolmer Lane. The Council should restrict the TPO to particular significant trees, if there are any, on the land

and thereby avoid us the bureaucratic nightmare of needing permission to look after our land.

Regards

Page 51



Ian McGrath

W

abe sk o sfe ofe s s e e 2k ke o e sk ok s ode ot ol ok e s she s sie sk s s ok e s sk s e ofe ool ol s s ol s e sl ol ol e e ol R R kR

The information in this electronic mail (email) and any

appendices to it is the property of New Forest District Couneil.

It may contain confidential information. It is intended for the addressee only.
Communications using this email system may be subject to recording and/or monitoring
in accordance with relevant legislation.

Please examine the full terms of this disclaimer by clicking

on the following hyper link: www.newforest.gov.uk\emaildisclaimer

Page 52


http://www.newforest.gov.uk/emaildisclaimer

NEW FOREST
NATIONAL PARK

| & C McGrath

Lake House

Woolmer Lane

Blashford 18 July 2017
BH24 3PQ

Dear | & C McGrath

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER No: TPO/0031/17
SITE: LAND AT SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD BH24 2PG

Thank you for your recent letter concerning the above Tree Preservation Order
(TPO).

| note from your letter that you are concerned by the indiscriminate nature of the
TPO and how it will require you to seek permission to carry out works to trees.

Firstly | will explain the circumstances upton which the TPO was made.

The New Forest National Park Authority was given notice by New Forest District
Council that the land at Snails Lane had been allocated as a potential development
site. As the trees within the site had no protection and the threat to the long term
retention of the trees is considered foreseeable, premature removal or extensive
pruning of the trees would result in the loss of an amenity to the local environment.
The Authority, therefore, reacted accordingly.

An Area order was deemed to be the most suitable option for tree protection given
the limited timescale and large size of the area of land and, as such, protects ‘all
trees of whatever species’. Please be assured that it is the intention of the Authority
to revise the TPO scheme in order to protect trees either as Individuals or Groups at
a later date. This action is often undertaken when an Area order is created under
circumstances in which TPO/0031/17 was made.

A Tree Preservation Order does not prevent work taking place on a tree but it does
require consent from the relevant Authority (in this case the New Forest National
Park Authority) to ensure that the work is considered to be reasonable.

With regard to TPOs in general and the application process, you may find it helpful
to read the booklet about TPOs that was included with your TPO notification.

New Forest National Park Authority
LYMINGTON TOWN HALL, AVENUE ROAD, LYMINGTON S041 892G
Telephone 01590 646600 Fax 01590 646666
www.newforestnpa.gov.uk
CHAIRMAN OLIVER CROSTHWAITE-EYRE CHIEF EXECUTIVE ALISON BARNES

Page 53


http://www.newforestnpa.gov.uk

| therefore trust the above explains our position and how we have sought to address
your concerns. The TPO, taking account of my above comments, will therefore be
confirmed however if you consider your objection has not been suitably addressed
please advise me in writing within 14 days of the date of this letter.

Yours sincerely

Lucy Saunders

Assistant Tree Officer

Tel: 01590 646670

Email: trees@newforestnpa.gov.uk

New Forest National Park Authority
LYMINGTON TOWN HALL, AVENUE ROAD, LYMINGTON S041 9ZG
Telephone 01590 646600 Fax 01590 648666

www.newforestnpa.gov.uk
CHAIRMAN OLIVER CROSTHWAITE-EYRE CHIEF EXECUTIVE ALISON BARNES

Page 54


mailto:trees@newforestnpa.gov.uk
http://www.newforestnpa.gov.uk

From: Ian McGrath

To: Trees

Subject: Re; Acolaid Case
Date: 31 July 2017 12:27:02
Dear Lucy

Your response to my letter concerning TPO/0031/17 does not satisfy me in any way.

I realise that Site R may or may not become an approved development site and I can
understand that a TPO may well be part of a Planning Approval. Any approval is likely to
be years ahead. In the meantime, there is no requirement for a TPO as the individual
landowners are quite capable of managing their land any any trees growing on the land.

The TPO extends beyond the boundary of Site R, particularly apparently right across
Woolmer Lane. As well as providing access to residences and pasture land, Woolmer
Lane is a public footpath. This is a private lane for which the council has no maintenance
role and I am responsible for maintaining much of the lane and its surrounding hedges and
trees. I frequently need to trim trees and remove dead tree limbs which could otherwise
fall across the lane causing damage or injury to my family, the general public or vehicles.

Providing that [ have written confirmation of my right to maintain both sides of Woolmer
Lane in the interests of personal and public safety, then I have no particular objection to
the TPO.

However I still consider it to be another example of the Council seeking control over
something which should be left as the responsibility of the people you are meant to be
serving, not controlling.

Regards

Ian McGrath

On 18 Jul 2017, at 14:40, "trees@newforestnpa.gov.uk" <trees@newforestnpa.gov.uk>

wrote:

Please see attached.

New Forest National Park Authority Connect with us on:
Lymington Town Hall
S S04192G — g
(2] H B B B8
Switchboard: 01590 646600
Web: www.newforestnpa.gov.uk (2]
Sian up for Enews
Email Disclaimer

Page 55


mailto:trees@newforestnpa.gov.uk
http://www.newforestnpa.aov.uk

Events Banner

<DocTPOObjResp.pdf>

Page 56



NEW FOREST
NATIONAL PARK

lan McGrath

Lake House

Woolmer Lane

Blashford 02 August 2017

BH24 3PQ

Dear lan McGrath

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER No: TPO/0031/17
SITE: LAND AT SNAILS LANE, BLASHFORD BH24 2PG

Thank you for your recent letter concerning the above Tree Preservation Order
(TPO).

In response to your concern about the management of trees over Woolmer Lane |
can confirm that the removal of deadwood from a tree is considered exmept works
and will not require a tree work application in the usual way. The same applies for
works to clear trees away from a highway, may i refer you to the TPO guidance
booklet enclosed with the original TPO notification.

All the Authority request is that you let us know, either by letter or email, before
works are undertaken so that we may notify the general public, should we recieve
any enquiries.

In regards to the allocated site you may wish to contact New Forest District Council
who may be able to discuss the details of potential development with you.

| hope that these points satisfy your concerns. Please respond if you require any
further information. If the Authority does not hear from you within 7 days of the date
of this letter then | will take that to mean you have withdrawn your objection.

Yours sincerely

Lucy Saunders
Assistant Tree Officer

New Forest National Park Authority
LYMINGTON TOWN HALL, AVENUE ROAD, LYMINGTON S041 8ZG
Telephone 01590 646600 Fax 01590 646666

www.newforestnpa.gov.uk
CHAIRMAN OLIVER CROSTHWAITE-EYRE CHIEF EXECUTIVE ALISON BARNES

Page 57


http://www.newforestnpa.gov.uk

Page 58



	Agenda
	 Apologies
	Meet here map 2

	4 Tree Preservation Order No. 31/17 - Land of Snails Lane, Blashford
	Appendix 1 front sheet
	TPO 31 2017
	Appendix 2 front sheet
	Report of National Park Authority Tree Officer
	Appendix 3 front sheet
	Appendix 3(a)
	Appendix 3(b)
	Appendix 4 front sheet
	Appendix 4


